
LUNA COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Linda M. Smrkovsky
Member

Barbara L. Reedy
Member

John S. Sweetser
Member

Thursday, January 13, 2022
10:00 a.m.

Agenda
Regular Meeting

Luna County Courthouse

Meeting ID: meet.google.com/wcm-iczv-vnr To dial in: 414-909-4972 PIN: 939 182 389#

1. Call to Order: Chair Reedy to commence meeting (At this time, please silence your cell
phones and any other electronic devices) Pledge of Allegiance, State Pledge.

2. Roll Call:

3. Elect 2022 Chairperson:
MOTION AND VOTE

4. Approval of Agenda:

5. Minutes:

a. Regular Meeting: December 9, 2021

MOTION AND VOTE

6. Service Awards/ Retirement:

● Janet Pacheco Dispatch 5 Years
● James McBurney LCSO 5 Years
● Dolores Gonzales LCDC 5 Years
● Mary Helen Allison LCDC Retirement

Special Recognition Award: Betty Quiroz- LCDC



7. Presentations:

● Quarterly Restrictive Housing Unit Report: Lee Cook
● 9/11 Flag of Honor Presentation by: Teresa Aguilera
● Marker Volatility (Bond Refinancing): Mark Valenzuela

8. Elected Officials’ Report:

● Assessor
● Clerk
● Treasurer
● Probate Judge
● Sheriff
● Commissioners

9. County Manager’s Report:

10.Indigent Claims Report:

a. Recess as County Commission, Convene as Claims Board
MOTION AND VOTE

b. Presentation of Claims Report by Joanne Hethcox
c. Consider Claims dated January 13, 2022 $13,678.33

MOTION AND VOTE
d. Recess as Claims Board, Re-Convene as County Commission

MOTION AND VOTE

11.Community Support Reports:

12.Public Comment: The Public has the opportunity to provide comments at this time
pertaining to items on the agenda only.  Please be advised that this is not a question and
answer period.  Your comments specific to the agenda items will be limited to three
minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests more information.  The time
limit and opportunity to speak is given in an effort to allow public input on business
matters of the County to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.
Comments will not be allowed on individual agenda items as they are discussed by the
Commissioners during new business.



13.Consent Agenda:

a. Accounts Payable: $1,735,885.80
b. Payroll: $1,693,673.64
c. Resolution 22-01: Notice of Meetings
d. Resolution 22-02: Timely Payments
e. Resolution 22-04:  Depositories, Board of Finance, and Media Designation
f. Resolution 22-05: Notice of Right to Inspect Public Records
g. Resolution 22-06: CBDG Annual Certification and Commitments
h. Resolution 22-07: Designating Treasurer to Require Collateralization
i. Resolution 22-08: ADA Grievance Procedure

MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

14.Old Business:

a. Letter of interest for Marshall Memorial Library Board - Kelly Stimpson
MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

15.New Business:

a. Resolution 22-03: Notice of Fees
MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

b. Resolution 22-09 Budget Increase
MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

c. Resolution 22-10: Budget Transfers
MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

16.Jail Inspection Report from June 2021:

17.Upcoming Meetings/ Events (unless otherwise specified):

NM Legislature NMC: Santa Fe- January 17-20, 2022
Special Meeting: January 24, 2022 at 9:00 a.m.
Work Session: January 24, 2022 at 10:00 a.m
Silver Spikes: Santa Fe- January 30, 2022-February 1, 2022
Regular Commission Meeting: February 10, 2022 at 10:00 a.m

18.Adjourn:















Luna County Commission –
Market Volatility

M A R K  V A L E N Z U E L A ,  M A N A G I N G  P R I N C I P A L

B O S Q U E  A D V I S O R S ,  L L C

5 0 5 . 2 3 8 . 2 4 2 1

M D N M @ M A C . C O M  

W E D N E S D A Y ,  J A N U A R Y  1 3 ,  2 0 2 2

1



2

Existing Debt – StarMax and Judicial Complex

▪ StarMax theater bonds were 
refinanced in 2014 from tax-
exempt to taxable bonds. 
Purpose was for the county to 
achieve savings from 
managing facility.

▪ Bonds have call optionality in 
Feb. 2025.

▪ Carry an interest rate of 3.05 
percent.

▪ Series 2007 Judicial Complex 
bonds were refinanced in 
2017.

▪ Bonds have call optionality in 
July 2024

▪ Carry an interest rate of 3.12 
percent.

Issuer: Luna County, NM

Type: GRT - Starmax

Series: Series 2014

Dated Date 4/28/2014

Original Par: $6,185,000

Current Par: $3,480,000

Terms Tax Exempt, Callable 7/1/24

Enhanceme

nt:

Call 

Provisions:

Due: 7/1

Calendar 

Year Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS

2021 0 0.000% 0 0

2022 210,000 3.050% 53,070 263,070

2023 425,000 3.050% 99,735 524,735

2024 440,000 3.050% 86,773 526,773

2025 455,000 3.050% 73,353 528,353

2026 465,000 3.050% 59,475 524,475

2027 480,000 3.050% 45,293 525,293

2028 495,000 3.050% 30,653 525,653

2029 510,000 3.050% 15,555 525,555

2030 0 0% 0 0

2031 0 0% 0 0

2032 0 0% 0 0

2033 0 0% 0 0

Total: $3,480,000 $463,905 $3,943,905

Issuer: Luna County, NM

Type: GRT - Judicial Complex

Series: Series 2017

Dated Date 4/28/2017

Original Par: $3,245,000

Current Par: $2,535,000

Terms Tax Exempt, Callable 7/1/24

Enhanceme

nt:

Call 

Provisions:

Due: 7/1

Calendar 

Year Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS

2021 0 0.000% 0

2022 200,000 3.120% 39,546 239,546

2023 200,000 3.120% 72,852 272,852

2024 210,000 3.120% 66,612 276,612

2025 220,000 3.120% 60,060 280,060

2026 220,000 3.120% 53,196 273,196

2027 230,000 3.120% 46,332 276,332

2028 235,000 3.120% 39,156 274,156

2029 245,000 3.120% 31,824 276,824

2030 250,000 3.120% 24,180 274,180

2031 255,000 3.120% 16,380 271,380

2032 270,000 3.120% 8,424 278,424

2033 0 0.000% 0 0

Total: $2,535,000 $458,562 $2,993,562



3

Existing Debt – StarMax – Interest Rate Change 

▪ Simulating refinance to current 
market rates.

▪ Must be a taxable rate.

▪ May have a benefit to county, 
who could privatize operations.

▪ Only change is to taxable 
current market interest rates.

▪ Par amount not changed 
(however, this is not real, only 
presented to show impact of 
rate change)

▪ Must increase amount of bonds 
for defeasance and fee 
amounts. 

▪ Only an illustration of rate 
change.

▪ Achieves 6.2 percent NPV.

Issuer:

Type:

Series:

Dated Date

Original Par:

Current Par:

Terms

Enhancement:

Call Provisions:

Due:

Calendar Year Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS

Difference: 

Refi minus 

existing PV Factor PV Value

2021 0 0.000% 0 0 -                  0.000% -                  -                  

2022 210,000 3.050% 53,070 263,070 210,000        0.290% 19,073         229,073        (33,997)      0.98        33,331    

2023 425,000 3.050% 99,735 524,735 425,000        0.460% 37,537         462,537        (62,199)      0.96        59,783    

2024 440,000 3.050% 86,773 526,773 440,000        0.670% 35,582         475,582        (51,191)      0.94        48,238    

2025 455,000 3.050% 73,353 528,353 455,000        0.890% 32,634         487,634        (40,719)      0.92        37,618    

2026 465,000 3.050% 59,475 524,475 465,000        1.110% 28,584         493,584        (30,891)      0.91        27,979    

2027 480,000 3.050% 45,293 525,293 480,000        1.370% 23,423         503,423        (21,870)      0.89        19,420    

2028 495,000 3.050% 30,653 525,653 495,000        1.590% 16,847         511,847        (13,806)      0.87        12,019    

2029 510,000 3.050% 15,555 525,555 510,000        1.760% 8,976           518,976        (6,579)        0.85        5,615      

2030 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  1.870% -                  -                  -                0.84        -             

2031 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  1.970% -                  -                  -                0.82        -             

2032 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  2.210% -                  -                  -                0.80        -             

2033 0 0.000% 0 0 -                  0.000% -                  -                  

Total: $3,480,000 $463,905 $3,943,905 $3,480,000 $202,653 $3,682,653 -$261,252 $244,003

Notes 6.2%

Tax Exempt, Callable 7/1/24 Taxable

$3,480,000 $3,480,000

$6,185,000 $2,860,000

4/28/2014 2/15/2022

Series 2014 Series 2022 - Simulation

GRT - Starmax GRT - Starmax

Luna County, NM Luna County, NM

7/1



4

Existing Debt – StarMax – Interest Rate Change & Par

▪ Simulating refinance to current 
market rates with increased 
par amount

▪ Payoff is ~$3.7 million.

▪ Fees ~ $100,000 (estimated 
fees for all professionals 
required).

▪ Borrowing more money to 
carry out the transaction:

▪ Deal become negative for 
County from a savings 
perspective. Savings is 1.6 
percent negative NPV.

▪ County would not be advised to 
carry out transaction under 
these terms.

▪ Not considered is the 
investment earnings on the 
escrow.

Issuer:

Type:

Series:

Dated Date

Original Par:

Current Par:

Terms

Enhancement:

Call Provisions:

Due:

Calendar Year Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS Principal Coupon Interest Annual DS

Difference: 

Refi minus 

existing PV Factor PV Value

2021 0 0.000% 0 0 -                  0.000% -                  -                  

2022 210,000 3.050% 53,070 263,070 250,000        0.290% 20,422         270,422        7,352         0.98        (7,208)     

2023 425,000 3.050% 99,735 524,735 490,000        0.460% 40,120         530,120        5,385         0.96        (5,175)     

2024 440,000 3.050% 86,773 526,773 500,000        0.670% 37,866         537,866        11,093        0.94        (10,453)   

2025 455,000 3.050% 73,353 528,353 505,000        0.890% 34,516         539,516        11,163        0.92        (10,313)   

2026 465,000 3.050% 59,475 524,475 505,000        1.110% 30,021         535,021        10,546        0.91        (9,552)     

2027 480,000 3.050% 45,293 525,293 510,000        1.370% 24,416         534,416        9,123         0.89        (8,101)     

2028 495,000 3.050% 30,653 525,653 515,000        1.590% 17,429         532,429        6,776         0.87        (5,899)     

2029 510,000 3.050% 15,555 525,555 525,000        1.760% 9,240           534,240        8,685         0.85        (7,413)     

2030 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  1.870% -                  -                  -                0.84        -             

2031 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  1.970% -                  -                  -                0.82        -             

2032 0 3.120% 0 0 -                  2.210% -                  -                  -                0.80        -             

2033 0 0.000% 0 0 -                  0.000% -                  -                  

Total: $3,480,000 $463,905 $3,943,905 $3,800,000 $214,028 $4,014,028 $70,123 -$64,114

Notes -1.6%

Tax Exempt, Callable 7/1/24 Taxable

$3,480,000 $3,800,000

$6,185,000 $2,860,000

4/28/2014 2/15/2022

Series 2014 Series 2022 - Simulation

GRT - Starmax GRT - Starmax

Luna County, NM Luna County, NM

7/1



5

Market interest rates are crucial variable 

▪ Interest rate yield curves

▪ US Treasury, a taxable rate

▪ Normal yield curve is upward slope 
– reflects investor demand to take 
appropriate risk.

▪ Short term rates are lower than 
long term rates.

▪ Inverted yield curves may indicate 
concerns for future economic 
conditions in the country

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

1 Mo 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 7 Yr 10 Yr 20 Yr 30 Yr

In
te

re
s
t 

R
a
te

Source: US. Treasury Department Reporting, Historical Treasury Yields.

US Treasury Daily Yield Curve

1/4/2007 1/5/2009 1/4/2011

normal yield curve

inverted yield curve



6

Yield Curve Inversion

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

1 Mo 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 7 Yr 10 Yr 20 Yr 30 Yr

US Treasury Yield Curves: Historical Comparison

1/4/2007 1/4/2008 1/5/2009 1/4/2010

1/4/2011 1/4/2012 1/4/2013 1/3/2014

1/5/2015 1/4/2016 1/4/2017 1/4/2018

1/4/2019 1/6/2020 1/4/2021 1/4/2022

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

5

1
/1

/2
0

0
7

8
/1

/2
0

0
7

3
/1

/2
0

0
8

1
0
/1

/2
0
0

8

5
/1

/2
0

0
9

1
2
/1

/2
0
0

9

7
/1

/2
0

1
0

2
/1

/2
0

1
1

9
/1

/2
0

1
1

4
/1

/2
0

1
2

1
1
/1

/2
0
1

2

6
/1

/2
0

1
3

1
/1

/2
0

1
4

8
/1

/2
0

1
4

3
/1

/2
0

1
5

1
0
/1

/2
0
1

5

5
/1

/2
0

1
6

1
2
/1

/2
0
1

6

7
/1

/2
0

1
7

2
/1

/2
0

1
8

9
/1

/2
0

1
8

4
/1

/2
0

1
9

1
1
/1

/2
0
1

9

6
/1

/2
0

2
0

1
/1

/2
0

2
1

8
/1

/2
0

2
1

US Treasury Yields: Comparison of 2 yr, 5 yr and 10 yr 

2 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr



7

Next Steps – Prepare to capitalize on market rates

▪ Bond transactions have a long 
lead time:
▪ Requires a bond ordinance passed 

by the Commission.

▪ Must be read twice before governing 
body and approved.

▪ A two-month process prior to being 
able to execute on any opportunity.

▪ COUNTY IS NOT OBLIGATED TO 
ACT unless transactions make 
sense

▪ Put together a team to put 
necessary ordinance and 
documents together
▪ Bosque Advisors, LLC, as financial 

advisor – structures financing and is a 
fiduciary to the County.

▪ Bond attorney – prepares bond 
ordinance and legal documents.

▪ Other professionals will be required if the 
transaction moves forward: CPA, escrow 
agent.

▪ The County controls the process. 
Transaction will not be completed unless 
it provides economic value to the county. 

▪ Given the market volatility, better to 
start sooner rather than later.






















































































	Agenda
	5a. Minutes; Regular meeting 12-9-21
	7. Quarterly Restrictive Housing Unit Report; Lee Cook 
	7... Marker Volatility (Bond Refinancing); Mark Valenzuela
	10. Indigent 
	13a. Accounts Payable 
	13b. Payroll
	13c. Resolution 22-01; Notice of Meetings 
	13d. Resolution 22-02; Timely Payments 
	13e. Resolution 22-04; Deporitories, Board of Finance and Media Designation
	13f. Resolution 22-05; Notice of Right to Inspect Public Records 
	13g. Resolution 22-06 CBDG Annual certification and Commitments
	13h. Resolution 22-07; Designating Treasurer to Require Collateralization 
	13i. Resolution 22-08; ADA Grievance Procedure 
	14a. Letter of Interest for Marshall Memorial Library Board; Kelly Stimpson 
	15a. Resolution 22-03; Notice of Fees
	15b. Resolution 22-09; Budget Increases 
	15c. Resolution 22-10; Budget Transfers 
	16. Jail Inspection Report from June 2021

